
 

 

Livingston Urban Renewal Agency Agenda 

 
 

The regular meeting of the Livingston Urban Renewal Agency Committee has been 

scheduled for January 27, 2026 at 4:30 PM in Community Room, City/County Complex. 

This meeting will be facilitated by the Chair. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89862002835?pwd=jqRwUhTc1dbROjYuJWmZfUb4cXiJM8.1 

 

Meeting ID: 898 6200 2835 

Passcode: 839141 

1. Roll Call 

2. Approval of Minutes 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM JULY 22, 2025, REGULAR MEETING PG.3 

3. New Business 

A. ELECTION OF 2026 BOARD OFFICERS PG.11 

B. DISCUSSION OF 2026 LIVINGSTON CITY COMMISSION PRIORITIES PG.15 

C. DISCUSSION REGARDING URA WEBSITE AND MARKETING PG.18 

4. Old Business 

5. Public Comments 

6. Board Comments 

7. Adjournment 

 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89862002835?pwd=jqRwUhTc1dbROjYuJWmZfUb4cXiJM8.1


File Attachments for Item:

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM JULY 22, 2025, REGULAR MEETING

2



 

 

Livingston Urban Renewal Agency Agenda 

 
 

The regular meeting of the Livingston Urban Renewal Agency Committee has 

been scheduled for July 22, 2025 at 4:30 PM in Community Room, 

City/County Complex. This meeting will be facilitated by Allison Vicenzi. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82526372452?pwd=bvX0k5TY1kOLSgbm25Xyxj4XOJHr2M.1 

 

Meeting ID: 825 2637 2452 

Passcode: 966119 

1. Roll Call 

Allison Vicenzi, Melissa Nootz, Chris Raley, Julie Evans, Lisa Garcia 

2. Approval of Minutes 

A.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM MAY 27, 2025, REGULAR MEETING 

 Allison and Julie gave corrections to minutes.  

 Julie motioned to approve minutes with corrections, seconded by Chris. Unanimously 

approved. 

3. New Business 

A. FACADE GRANT APPLICATION FOR 101 N. MAIN STREET 

 The City Manager introduced the item and stated the request is $73,979 for the façade 

at 101 N. Main Street, and the project is expected to take 3 years to complete.  

 Chris asked for clarification on working on this project in thirds.  

 The applicant stated yes, it will be worked on in thirds. 

3

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82526372452?pwd=bvX0k5TY1kOLSgbm25Xyxj4XOJHr2M.1


 

 

Livingston Urban Renewal Agency Agenda 

 Lisa Garcia came to the meeting at 4:42 PM. 

 The applicant said they might be able to get it done in 2 years. 

 Allison stated the applicant was wanting to be paid in sections and wondered if that 

was possible. 

 The City Manager stated for a multi-phase project like this, they could pay out 

sectionally. Invoices and proof of payment would be required for each section, but 

they can do the payments. 

 The applicant stated the first payment would be larger and the other two as they plan 

to purchase materials. 

 Chris asked about labor costs and if they increase over time the URA would still only 

be paying for what was applied and granted today.  

 The City Manager stated yes, they could make a motion to approve up to a certain 

dollar amount. 

 Melissa stated that City Commissioners get a lot of questions when big projects like 

this are happening downtown. She wondered what the management of public space 

will look like in a project like this in relation to parking.  

 The City Manager stated projects do have the ability to pay for a parking space for 

construction projects. 

 Melissa asked if there will be a public communication going out because she feels after 

4 summers of this the Commission is going to hear about this project.  

 The City Manager stated they will work with the applicant to help spread the word and 

publicize it.  

 The applicant clarified that other business owners downtown have let them use their 

parking for the lifts for this project, which has been great. 

 Chris wondered how the thirds are split. 

 The applicant stated it’s just literally in thirds.  

 Lisa asked where this project fell in line with the Historic Preservation Commission 

being involved. 

 The City Manager stated they are comfortable to moving forward with the project as 

is and this application came through in June after the legislative session.  

4



 

 

Livingston Urban Renewal Agency Agenda 

 Julie asked about painting quotes. 

 The applicant stated they supplied 2 quotes because it was required and clarified 

which one they would be using.  

 Chris asked if they need 2nd quotes for certain things. 

 The City Manager stated that the guidelines request multiple quotes, but within the 

City procurement guidelines we do have allowances for quotes and they understand 

you can’t force folks to submit a quote. This has been reviewed at a staff level and they 

are comfortable with what has been chosen in the application.  

 Melissa motioned to approve this item, seconded by Chris. Unanimously approved.  

B. PRESENTATION OF BY-LAWS AND HANDBOOK 

 The City Manager stated that the City Commission adopted new bylaws for the URA in 

an effort to standardize the bylaws across all advisory boards. He stated they don’t 

materially change anything in the function of the URA.  

 Melissa asked about quorum. 

 The City Manager stated to start a meeting 4 members must be present. He stated if 

the full board is at a meeting they require 4 out of 6 votes to move an item forward.  

 The City Manager stated that the board and commission handbook provides clarity to 

advisory boards about how they fit in with the City and their role. He stated the City 

Commission adopted a conflict-of-interest policy earlier this year, and it does apply to 

all boards and commissions, and he encouraged all of them to review that document. 

He clarified that if a member has a financial interest in an item before the board the 

member is required to declare that, recuse themselves and that includes stepping 

down from the table. He added that there is also a disclosure form that will need to 

be filled out and sent back to the City Clerk.  

 Melissa added some topics to be discussed about the conflict-of-interest policy and 

they include the appearance of impropriety, and the use of the word shall when it 

comes to filling out the disclosure form. She stated that the Commission wanted to 

make it a requirement for boards to fill this out.  

 The City Manager reviewed page 38 that references LMC 2-24. He stated the purpose 

of this policy is to ensure the actions of elected and appointed boards are not called 

into question, and there is no appearance of impropriety.  

5



 

 

Livingston Urban Renewal Agency Agenda 

 Melissa stated that is why they included the word shall for the disclosure forms as a 

requirement to sit on the board.  

 Julie asked for clarification on recusing yourself and wondered if it was just from voting 

or the whole conversation as well. 

 The City Manager acknowledged they would recuse themselves from the conversation 

and voting.  

 Allison asked for clarification on some wording that says the board member may come 

back to the table for a vote. 

 The City Manager referenced page 39 and explained that happens only if the vote is 

needed to meet quorum requirements.  

 Allison asked for an example of ex parte. 

 The City Manager stated ex parte communication would be where a board member 

has a conversation with the applicant about the project outside of a public meeting. 

He stated it would be appropriate for that board member to let the board know in the 

public meeting that they did have that conversation.  

 Melissa brought up order of operations on page 35 of the packet where it lays out the 

steps to disclose things like ex parte.  

 Lisa asked what happens if the board votes 3- 3 on an item. 

 The City Manager stated the item would fail since it didn’t pass. He stated the Chair 

could call for additional motions.  

4. Old Business 

A. DISCUSSION REGARDING ESTABLISHMENT OF SUBCOMMITTEES 

 The City Manager stated this item is revisiting a conversation initiated by several board 

members in the spring. He stated that any board has the ability to create 

subcommittees, and referenced in MCA that subcommittees are subject to open 

meeting laws. 

 Lisa asked when it would be appropriate for board members to meet outside of a 

public meeting.  

 The City Manager stated that Montana’s constitution and MCA are very supportive of 

public participation and public meetings, so at no time should a quorum of the URA 

board meet outside of a public meeting. He clarified that 2 members could have a 

6



 

 

Livingston Urban Renewal Agency Agenda 

conversation about board business, but if one of those members started talking to 

other members of the board about the same business, they would be in violation of 

open meetings law by having a walking quorum.  He stated that best practice is not to 

talk about board business outside of a board meeting.  

 Chris asked about noticing for a meeting. 

 The City Manager stated the requirement is 48 hours before a meeting.  

 Allison asked about the part that states members shall not perform work tasks to 

support the function of their board or commission.  

 The City Manager gave an example of a board member on a different board going to 

an approved project posing as someone from the City there for compliance, and he 

stated that is not allowed.  

 Melissa gave an example of an applicant is having their application considered by the 

URA, but they wanted to know if the project guidelines met the requirements of the 

City or HPC guidelines, and they asked a URA member and the URA member was giving 

feedback on that. She reminded everyone that it would not be appropriate to do that 

as City requirements would go through the City Manager and HPC topics would go 

through the appropriate City staff.  

 The City Manager stated that much of the work for an application and for the board 

should be in a public meeting setting. He stated that after a public meeting the board 

next expected work task is read a packet when it comes to them.  

 Lisa asked if a community member asks about the grant guidelines if they can answer 

or send the person to the City Manager. 

 Melissa stated that you do have to send the community member with those questions 

to City staff.  

 The City Manager clarified that the board can let folks know the program exists, but 

just cannot advise them on the process, at that point they would direct applicants to 

City staff.  

 Julie asked about work tasks and specifically when a board member went and put out 

flyers. 

 The City Manager stated that is an example of something that should have been done 

by City staff.  

 The board made comments about how this is all new information for them. 

7



 

 

Livingston Urban Renewal Agency Agenda 

 Melissa clarified that it is not necessarily new because it hasn’t been new for the City 

Commission, and she stated that the City Commission has done a lot of work to clarify 

all of these guidelines and information more clearly for the advisory boards.  

 Allison acknowledged that creating more subcommittees might not be possible as it 

would impact City staff. 

 Melissa reminded everyone that the City Manager is the only one who directs City staff, 

and the City Commission is the body that directs the City Manager. 

 The City Manager stated that looking at URA meetings and noticing they have only 

around 1 application to work through per meeting, he does feel there is time in the 

meetings themselves to deal with some of the boards items they would like to move 

forward.  

 Lisa asked how to get the information to the City Manager for items they would like 

on the agenda. 

 The City Manager stated that he is the designated City staff on this specific board, so 

it is appropriate for them to ask him to add items to the agenda. 

 Chris asked about updating the URA portion of the website, and if that would go to 

City staff. 

 The City Manager stated yes, and he explained how the City website functions and 

does allow creation of microsites. 

 Melissa asked if it would be additional cost, or not because it would be through the 

website that the City already pays for. 

 The City Manager stated the City does currently pay for the website and a URA 

microsite would be included.  

  

5. Public Comments 

6. Board Comments 

Julie asked about the sewer project and when she attended a meeting it was brought up that 

URA funds would be used for the project. 

The City Manager stated the program was created a few years ago, and does still exist. He 

stated that it should have been mentioned in those presentations who affect property 

owners are and who can use the funds.  

8



 

 

Livingston Urban Renewal Agency Agenda 

Julie asked how people would apply or get funding. 

The City Manager stated he will make sure Public Works gets the information out, or folks 

can contact him at CityManager@LivingstonMontana.org or 406-223-4475. 

Chris motioned to add a topic of a URA website to the next agenda, seconded by Lisa. 

Melissa asked about what was decided to be included in the 122 N. Main project from last 

meeting. 

The City Manager stated that the northern and western facing sides of the building meet the 

criteria for reimbursement. He stated the south does not because there is not a pedestrian 

walkway, and the east because the pedestrian walkway does not front the building.  

Lisa asked about their consultant Brianne Downy and if they are still able to reach out to her 

and how that works.  She asked if they could also get an update on the new FY year budget.  

The City Manager stated that Brianne’s contract is very useful as she could be assigned items 

such as making flyers or scoping out the website.  

Lisa motioned to add to the next agenda an item to give tasks to Brianne, seconded by 

Allison.  

Allison expressed with new clarity she hopes it empowers the board to work together and 

better as a team.  

7. Adjournment 

5:59pm Allison motioned to adjourn, seconded by Lisa. Unanimously approved.  

9

mailto:CityManager@LivingstonMontana.org


File Attachments for Item:

A. ELECTION OF 2026 BOARD OFFICERS

10



 
 

  

 

Date:   1/27/2026 
To:  URA Board Members 
From:  Grant Gager 
 

Staff Report for Appointment of Board Officers 
 

Recommendation and Summary 
Staff recommends that the Board elect a Chair and Vice-Chair by adopting the following motion:  
 
“I move to elect ____________________ as Chair and ____________________ as Vice Chair of 
the Livingston Urban Renewal Agency for 2026.” 
 
The reasons for the recommendation are as follows: 
• The Livingston Urban Renewal Agency requires the Board to elect and Chair and Vice-

Chair at the first meeting of each year for a one (1) year term 
 
Introduction and History 
Pursuant to the by-laws approved by the City Commission, “At the first meeting of each calendar 
year, the Board will elect, from its members, a Chair and a Vice-Chair.”  
 
The Chair will perform the following duties: 
• Facilitate all meetings according to the board operating procedures detailed in the City’s 

Board and Commission handbook and maintaining order. 
• Promote efficient use of the Board’s time while assuring that all interested parties have 

an opportunity to participate in Board activities. 
 
Analysis 
This is a decision of the Board pursuant to the Bylaws. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact arising from this discussion. 
 
Strategic Alignment 
A Chair and Vice-Chair will ensure ability to operate.  
 
Attachments 

 Attachment A: Bylaws 

11



 
 

CITY OF LIVINGSTON  

 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BY-LAWS 
 
 

Article 1: Purpose 
 
Section 1: The Livingston Urban Renewal Agency shall be vested with the authority of 

administering the Livingston Urban Renewal Plan, as described in the Livingston City 
Commission’s Ordinance 1932.  As such, this Board will advise the City Commission on 

matters pertaining to Urban Renewal within the City’s jurisdiction.  This Board will also 
advise the City Commission as to any revisions or updating of the City’s Urban Renewal 

Plan. The creation and operation of the Board is codified in Title 7, Chapter 15, Parts 42 
and 43 of the Montana Code Annotated (MCA). 
 

Article 2: Membership 
 
Section 1: The Livingston Urban Renewal Agency shall consist of Six (6) members.  Five 

(5) citizen members, who are residents of the City, to be appointed by the City Commission 
for overlapping two (2) year terms and one (1) member of the City Commission who shall 

be a voting member and shall be appointed annually by the City Commission. Other than 
the City Commissioner, a member shall not hold any public office of the City other than 
their membership. 

 
Section 2: Vacancies will be filled by the City Commission as soon as practicable. 

 
Section 3: Members may be removed in accordance with the City’s Board and Commission 

handbook. 
 
Section 4: Members shall be subject to the provisions of the Livingston Conflict of Interest 

Policy as codified in Chapter 2 of the Livingston Municipal Code.   
 

Article 3: Meetings 
 
Section 1: Regular meetings will be held on the Urban Renewal Agency of each month at a 

venue provided by the City (generally the Community Room in the City-County Building). 

 

Section 2: Special meetings may be called by the assigned City Staff Member. City staff will 
notify Board members at least two (2) days in advance of the purpose, date, time and place 
of the meeting. 

 
Section 3: All meetings will be noticed in accordance with City policy, City ordinance and 

State law. 
 

12



Section 4: Regular meetings may be canceled when no business is pending; however, the 
Board shall meet at least once quarterly in each calendar year. 

 
Section 5: Meetings are subject to Montana's Open Meeting Laws as set forth in 2-3-101 et 

seq MCA. 
 

Section 6: Meetings shall be conducted according to the board operating procedures detailed 
in the City’s Board and Commission handbook. 
 

Article 4: General Operations 
 
Section 1: The Urban Renewal Agency is responsible for holding public hearings and 

making recommendations pertaining to Urban Renewal to the City Commission. 
 

Section 2: A quorum shall consist of a majority of appointed, voting Board members (Four 
of Six).  No official action can be transacted and no motions may be passed without a 

quorum present. 
 
Section 3: Officers: At the first meeting of each calendar year, the Board will elect, from its 

members, a Chair and a Vice-Chair.  The Chair will perform the following duties: 
 

 Facilitate all meetings according to the board operating procedures detailed in 
the City’s Board and Commission handbook and maintaining order. 

 Promote efficient use of the Board’s time while assuring that all interested 
parties have an opportunity to participate in Board activities. 

 
The Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in the Chair’s absence.  
 

Assigned City Staff shall act as Secretary.  The Secretary shall be responsible for keeping 
records of the Board actions and recommendations, including overseeing the taking of 

minutes, sending out meeting notices and distributing copies of minutes and agendas. 
 

Section 4: A member of the Board who knows, in advance, that they will be absent from a 
scheduled meeting shall notify the Chair and Assigned City Staff as soon as possible.  Any 
absence without notice is undesirable.  Any member who misses more than 25% of meetings 

in a twelve (12) month period without giving notice and being excused shall be subject to 
replacement by the governing body.   

 

Article 5: Adoption and Amendment 
 

Section 1: These Bylaws are adopted this ________ day of _________, 20___, by the 
Livingston City Commission.  

 
Section 2: These Bylaws may be amended by the City Commission as deemed necessary by 
the City Commission at an appropriately noticed public meeting.  

 
  

13



File Attachments for Item:

B. DISCUSSION OF 2026 LIVINGSTON CITY COMMISSION PRIORITIES

14



 
 

  

 

Date:   1/27/2026 
To:  URA Board Members 
From:  Grant Gager 
 

Discussion of 2026 Livingston City Commission Priorities 
 

Recommendation and Summary 
The Livingston City Commission has established priorities for the calendar year 2026. These 
priorities are being shared with the Urban Renewal Agency Board to ensure alignment. As such, 
no motion is requested nor required.   
 
The reasons for the transmittal are as follows: 
• The Livingston City Commission held a work session on January 14, 2026, to discuss 

priorities to focus on in 2026. 
 
Introduction and History 
At its meeting on January 6, 2026, the City Commission decided to hold a work session to discuss 
priorities for calendar year 2026 and beyond. The City Commission met on January 14, 2026, for 
that work session. 
 
Analysis 
The attached documents outline the priorities as discussed on January 14, 2026. The updated to 
the Urban Renewal Plan and focus on economic development are especially relevant to the Urban 
Renewal Agency Board.  
 
Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact arising from this discussion. 
 
Strategic Alignment 
Understanding the priorities by the Commission helps ensure that Urban Renewal Agency 
remains aligned in work with the City. 
Attachments 

 Attachment A: 2026 Livingston City Commission Priorities 

15



Topic / Item Priority Level

Crossing High

Veteran's Memorial High

Storm water Medium

Waterways Medium

Neighborhood Infrastructure (Sidewalks/Active Transportation) Low

Public Amenity Upgrades (Parks, Down Town) Low

Disaster Preparation (Community Wildfire Protection Plan, Evacuation) High

Emergency Services (staffing, consolidation) High

Wellness Center High

Annexation Policy High

Communications (Surveys, TV, Meetings, Proclamations, Listening Sessions, 

Department Updates)

High

Economic Oppurtunity/Development High

Urban Renewal Plan update High

Board Management (Policy, Operations, Residency, Existence) Medium

Strategic Planning Medium

1st Class City (10k population) Low

Grants Reporting Low

Vocational Education Low

Agenda/Meetings (Length) In Process

Department Updates In Process

Event fees In Process

Commission Meetings/Policy

Infrastructure

Operations

16



File Attachments for Item:

C. DISCUSSION REGARDING URA WEBSITE AND MARKETING

17



 
 

  

 

Date:   1/27/2026 
To:  URA Board Members 
From:  Grant Gager 
 

Discussion of Website and Marketing 
 

Recommendation and Summary 
The Urban Renewal Agency Board is invited to discuss the current website and possible marketing 
efforts in response to a request from the Board at its July 2025 meeting. As such, no motion is 
requested nor required.   
 
The reasons for the transmittal are as follows: 
• The Urban Renewal Agency Board requested a discussion on the website and marketing 

efforts. 
 
Introduction and History 
At its meeting on July 22, 2025, the Urban Renewal Agency (URA) Board discussed possible 
updates to the website. The Board also briefly discussed possible marketing efforts. An item was 
requested to be added to a future agenda to continue the brief un-agendized discussion.  
 
Analysis 
The URA utilizes the City’s website and information technology systems to operate its website. 
The website contains information on URA programs and history. Additionally, the URA does 
limited marketing given the scope of responsibilities is restricted to the urban renewal area 
concentrated on the downtown.   
 
Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact arising from this discussion. 
 
Strategic Alignment 
This item was requested by the Board.  
 
Attachments 

 None 

18

https://www.livingstonmontana.org/bc-ura

	Top
	Item A.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM JULY 22, 2025, REGULAR MEETING
	7-22 URA Mins

	Item A.	ELECTION OF OFFICERS
	260127 - Board Officer Appointment
	250520 - URA Bylaws

	Item B.	LCC 2026 PRIORITIES
	260127 - 2026 Priorities
	260120 - Commission_Priorities_2026

	Item C.	WEBSITE AND MARKETING
	260127 - Website & Marketing Conversation

	Bottom



